LETTER OPI NI ON
80-51

January 9, 1980 (OPI NI ON)

M. Robert A Keogh

Sl ope County State's Attorney
Sl ope County Court house

Am don, North Dakota 58620

Dear M. Keogh:

This is in response to your letter dated Decenber 14, 1979, wherein
you request our opinion on several natters respecting the State
Revenue Sharing Act, sections 54-27-20.1 through 54-27-20.3 of the
North Dakota Century Code. |In your letter you state

Concern has devel oped with respect to the manner in which the
State Treasurer has distributed revenue sharing funds to the
counties and townshi ps pursuant to subsection 4 of the above
section, particularly to those counties which contain both
organi zed and unorgani zed townships. It appears that the State
Treasurer has determined that in situations where the counties
contain only organi zed townshi ps, the ten percent of allocation
figure set forth in subsection 4 was considered to be the
maxi mum al | ocation to the townshi ps. However, the Treasurer
apparently determined that in those situations where counties
contain both organized and unorgani zed townshi ps, the ten
percent figure did not apply, and that the distribution was to
be determ ned based upon the total allocation to the county and
apportioned out based upon the popul ati on of the townships.

The State Treasurer did allocate and distribute the npst recent
revenue sharing paynent to Slope County, which contains both
organi zed and unorgani zed townshi ps, in the manner above
described. | disagreed with that distribution, and have given
the County Comm ssioners ny witten opinion, a copy of the same
bei ng attached hereto for your information.

I have been in contact with State Treasurer, Bob Hanson, both
prior to the issuance of my opinion and subsequently, and there
appear to be a nunber of areas in the above section of |aw
which require clarification by neans of your opinion.

I request your opinion on the follow ng matters:

1. Wether the opinion | have issued to the Sl ope County
Commi ssioners is substantially correct.

2. \Wet her subsection 4 of the above section provides that the
maxi mum al l ocation to townships is ten percent of the
county allocation, whether the county contains al
organi zed townshi ps or a conbi nation of organi zed and
unor gani zed townshi ps

3. Wether the "county's share of revenue sharing funds”



referred to in subsection 4 includes amounts allocated to
the county pursuant to subsections la and 2.

4., \Wether the allocation to cities set forth in subsection 1d
>sic! applies as the only allocation to which cities are
entitled.

5. In what way the popul ati on of incorporated cities is to be
considered in making the all ocation anong townshi ps based
on popul ation of the townships as conpared with the
"countywi de" area popul ation.

W will respond to your questions in the order presented in your
letter.

1. Your opinion dated Decenber 5, 1979, to the Slope County
Auditor, gives interpretation to the nanner in which county
revenue sharing funds are to be distributed pursuant to
subsection 4 of section 54-27-20.2. Subsection 4 provides:

If within any county there shall be |ocated townships
created pursuant to chapter 58-02, such county's share
of revenue sharing funds shall be divided between the
county and such townships. The townships shall receive
ten percent of the allocations nade to such county in
the proportion that the popul ation of each township
within the countyw de area bears to the popul ation of
all townships within the countywi de area. |If the
countywi de area is not fully organi zed i nto townshi ps,
the allocation to townships shall be divided between
the county governnent and the townships within the
countywi de area, in the proportion that the popul ation
of the townships bear to the popul ation of the
countywi de area, and the allocation of the township's
share shall be distributed anong the townships within
the countywi de area in the manner otherw se provided by
this section. The county treasurer shall transfer the
townshi p share of such revenue sharing funds to the
respective township or townships. The remainder shal
be allocated to the county governnent, and thereafter
shal | be considered a part of the initial allocation of
the county governnent.

Your opinion states:

It is my opinion that the county is entitled to, for its
general fund, 90 percent of the total anpbunt. The remaining 10
percent is to be divided or allocated to townships in the
proportion that the popul ati on of each townshi ps bear the
popul ati on of the entire county. Each organi zed township shal
be entitled to its percentage share of the described 10
percent, and the share for each unorgani zed townshi p shall be
paid over to the county.

It is further ny opinion that the allocation formula used by
the State Treasurer for Slope County was incorrect and shoul d
not be followed by Slope County.



It is my understanding that the State Treasurer's allocation
anong the townships in Slope County was based upon the
conclusion that the second sentence of Subparagraph 4 of the
above statute provided a separate allocation fornula in cases
where there were only organi zed townships within a county, and
that the third sentence provided a separate allocation fornula
in counties where there were both organized and unorgani zed
townships. M conclusion differs in that | believe the statute
provi des one fornula which essentially allocates an initial 90
percent of the fund to the county, and the renaining 10 percent
to be divided anong townshi ps, whether organized or

unorgani zed. In those situations where all of the townships
are organi zed, then each township would share in the 10 percent
based upon the proportionate popul ation of each township. In

those counties where there are both organi zed and unor gani zed
townshi ps, then the 10 percent allocation to the townships
woul d be divi ded anmong both organi zed and unorgani zed t ownshi ps
based upon their popul ation, but the share for the unorganized
t ownshi ps woul d be paid over to the county to be used by it in
addition to the initial 90 percent allocation

We concur with the conclusions in your Decenber 5, 1979, opinion and
consider themto be substantially correct.

2. Wile our answer to your first question answers your second
question, we restate our agreenent with your concl usion
that subsection 4 provides only one desi gnated percentage
of funds to be subtracted froma "county's share of revenue
sharing funds" for purposes of distribution to townships.

A maxi numten percent of the allocations nade to a county
are nmade available to the townships. Were a county is
fully organized into townships created pursuant to chapter
58-02, the total ten percent anount is to be shared by the
t ownshi ps " in the proportion that the popul ati on of
each township within the countyw de area bears to the

popul ation of all townships within the countyw de area.”
Where a county is not fully organized into townships, the
ten percent anmount designated for townships is to be

di vi ded between county governnent and the organized

t ownshi ps " .in the proportion that the popul ati on of
the township bears to the popul ati on of the countyw de
area." Subsection 4 further provides that the renai nder of
the ten percent anpbunt not distributed to the organized
townships within a county not fully organized into
townships is allocated to the county governnent and becones
a part of the initial allocation to the county governnent.

3. The "county's share of revenue sharing funds", referred to
in subsection 4, is considered to consist of those funds
allocated to a county pursuant to subsection la and 2b of
section 54-27-20.2. W find no other allocation made to
the counties that could be considered to be included in a
"county's share of revenue funds."

4. Qur answer to this questionis "no". Cities receive
revenue sharing funds pursuant to the allocation provided



i n subsection 1b and subsection 2b of section 54-27-20. 2.
For your information, we are enclosing copies of
correspondence dated Septenber 6, 1979, and Novenber 20,
1979, to the State Treasurer which contain discussions of
the allocations nmade to both counties and cities pursuant
to the State Revenue Sharing Act.

5. W do not believe that the popul ation of incorporated
cities is to be considered in naking the allocation anmpng
t ownshi ps provided in subsection 4 of section 54-27-20.1
and di scussed above. While subsection 2a of section
54-27-20.2 defines "countywi de area"” to be the "geographic
area of a county", it is considered that the context in
whi ch "countyw de area" is used in subsection 4 respecting
the determ nation of the proportionate anpbunt of each
townshi p's share of the allocation of funds nade to
townshi ps by that subsection, limts the "popul ati on" of
the "countywi de area" to be considered, for purposes of
determining township distribution, to the popul ation of al
organi zed townships in a county fully organized into
townshi ps and to the popul ati on of organi zed townshi ps and
unor gani zed township areas in counties not fully organized
into townshi ps. The basic ten percent allocation nmade to
townshi ps by subsection 4 consists only of funds originally
all ocated to counties pursuant to subsection la and
subsection 2b of section 54-27-20.2. No funds allocated to
cities pursuant to subsection 1b and subsection 2b of
section 54-27-20.2 are included in the ten percent
al l ocation nade and to be distributed to townshi ps pursuant
to the provisions of subsection 4. Therefore, it is
reasonable to conclude, within the context of subsection 4,
that the distribution of funds exclusively derived froma
"county's share of revenue sharing funds" to townships
within a county not fully organized into townshi ps and the
remai nder of which is to be allocated to county governnent
shoul d be determ ned on the basis of a "countyw de area"
popul ati on that does not include the popul ation of
i ncorporated cities.

Where a statute is not clear on its face, legislative history is
often available in determning the intention of the |egislation.
However, since the State Revenue Sharing Act resulted from an
initiated neasure, we do not have the benefit of |egislative
committee reports for the purpose of determning |egislative intent.

In light of the reasoning discussed above and in the absence of

| egislative history, it is considered that the interpretation given
to subsection 4 by your opinion and the further interpretation given
by this opinion is correct. However, as in all such cases, the
courts would nmake the final determination of the statute's neaning
and effect if presented with the question in an appropriate

pr oceedi ng.

It is hoped that the foregoing will be of assistance

Si ncerely,



ALLEN 1. OLSON

Att orney GCeneral



